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TO THE MEMBERSOF SPCLlFESCIENCESPRIVATELIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of SPC LifesciencesPrivate Limited (lithe

Company"), which comprise the BalanceSheetasat 31st March, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss

(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of

Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaidfinancial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the IIAct") in

the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting

Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting

Standards)Rules,2015, as amended, ("lnd AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in

India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2022, the profit and total comprehensive

income, changes in equity and its cashflows for the year ended on that date.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit of the FinancialStatementsin accordancewith the Standardson Auditing (SAs)

specified under section 143{10) of the CompaniesAct, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards

are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the FinancialStatementssection

of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordancewith the Code of Ethicsissuedby the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the independence requirements that are

relevant to our audit of the FinancialStatementsunder the provisions of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and

'!o.K'UMUIl"iO:'S thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordancewith theseeiPy
-e
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requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements.

Information other than the Financial Statement and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the, Board's Report including annexure to Board's

Report and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's

report thereon;

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this

other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial

Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give

a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive

income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under

Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively

for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and

presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;



In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so;

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control;

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act,

2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate

internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management;



• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our

auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to

the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to

cease to continue as a going concern;

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation;

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the

financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)

planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the

effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company of which we are the

independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit;

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards;

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that

were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current period and are

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we

determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("/the Order"), issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we

give in the" Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so

far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),

the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are

in agreement with the relevant books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Accounting standard) Rules, 2021;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3pt March, 2022

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,

2022 from being appointed asa director in termsof Section164(2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectivenessof such controls, refer to our separate Report in

"AnnexureB;

(g) With respectto the other mattersto be included in the Auditor's Report in accordancewith Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

informationand accordingto the explanationsgiven to us:

i. The Company hasdisclosedthe impact of pending litigations on its financialposition in

its financialstatements- ReferNote 35 (A)to the financialstatements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivativescontracts for

which there were anymaterialforeseeablelosses;



iii. The company is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund.

iv.

i. The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as

disclosed in note no. 44(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or

loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or

kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign

entities (" Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or

otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company

("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the

Ultimate Beneficiaries;

ii. The Management has represented that , to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as

disclosed in note no. 44(vii) to the financial statements, that no funds have been received

by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding

Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the

Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate

Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries; and

iii. Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in

the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividends during the year.

For, C N K & Associates LLP
Charteredaccountants
FRN:101961W/w-100036

Alok B. Shah
Partner
MembershipNo. 042005
Date: 15thSeptember,2022
Place:Vadodara
UDIN:22042005ASLSCV3890

---- ---



ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in Para 1 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in our Independent

Auditor's Report to the members of the Company on the Financial Statements for the year ended

31st March, 2022.

To the best of our information and accordingto the explanationsprovided to us by the Companyand

the booksof accountand recordsexaminedby us in the normalcourseof audit, we statethat:

I. (a) In respectof the Company'sProperty,Plantand Equipmentsand IntangibleAssets:

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitativedetails and situationof property, plant and equipment;

(B)TheCompanyhasmaintainedproper recordsshowingfull particularsof IntangibleAssets;

(b) The company has a phased programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and

Equipmentso as to cover all assetsonce in three years. In accordancewith this programme,

certain Property, Plant and Equipment were verified during the year and no material

discrepancieswere noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical

verification is reasonablehavingregard to the sizeof the Companyand the natureof its asset;

(c) Basedon our verification of the documentsprovided to us and according to the information

and explanationsgiven by the Management,the title deeds of all the immovableproperties

(other than properties where the company is the lesseeand the leaseagreementsare duly

executed in favour of the lessee)asdisclosedin the financialstatements,are held in the name

of the Companyasat the BalanceSheetdate;

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use

assets)or intangible assetsor both during the year;

(e) As disclosedin note no. 44(i)to the accountsandasverified by us,no proceedingshavebeen

initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the

BenamiTransactions(Prohibition)Act, 1988(45of 1988)and rulesmadethereunder;

II. (A) In our opinion and according to information and explanationsgiven to us, physicalverification

of inventoryhasbeen conducted at reasonableintervalswith appropriate coverageand procedures

of suchverificationby the managementand no discrepancieswere noticed on physicalverification

of-10%or more in aggregate for eachclassof inventory;



(B)Based on our examination of the records provided by the management, the company has been

sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the

basis of security of current assets and the quarterly returns and statements filed by the company

with such banks are generally in agreement with the books of account of the company

III. The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security, to companies,

firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties, during the year, in respect of which;

(a) The Company has granted unsecured loans to its employees during the year, details of which

are as follows;

Unsecured No. of Parties Aggregate amount Balance outstanding as on 31st

loans granted/Provided March, 2022 in respect of loans
during the year (Rs. in (Rs.in lakhs)
lakhs)

Employees 9 2.41 I 1.79

(b) In our opinion and accordingto the informationprovided to us,the termsand conditionsof the

grant of suchloansand investmentsmadeare not prejudicial to the interestof the company;

(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and

paymentof interest hasbeen stipulated and the repaymentsof principal amountsand receipts

of interestare generallybeen regularasper stipulation;

(d) In respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount remaining

outstandingasat the balancesheetdate;

(e) No loan granted by the Companywhich hasfallen due during the year, hasbeen renewedor

extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same

parties;

(f) TheCompanyhasnot granted any loansor advancesin the nature of loanseither repayableon

demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence,

reporting under clause3(iii)(f)is not applicable;

Other than that mentioned above, the company has not provided any guarantee or security or

granted any advancesin the nature of loans,securedor unsecured,to companies,firms, Limited

LiabilityPartnershipor anyother parties;

)



IV. In our opinion and according to the information provided to us, there are no loans to directors

including entities in which they are interested in respect of which provision of section 185 are

applicable and hence not commented upon. Further, in our opinion and according to information

and explanation given to us, provision of section 186 in respect of loans and advances given and

investment made have been complied with by the Company. There are no guarantees and

securities given in respect of which provision of section 186 of the Act are applicable and hence

not commented upon;

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits during

the year and therefore, the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder are not applicable to the Company;

VI. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company as prescribed by the

Central Government under sub section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act and are of the

opinion that prima facie the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the

Company. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to

determine whether they are accurate or complete;

VII. (a) In our opinion, the company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues

including Goods and Service tax, provident fund, employee state insurance, income-tax, sales tax,

service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues as

applicable to the appropriate authorities. There were no undisputed amounts payable with respect

to above statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of six months from the date

they became payable;

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us, the

particulars of statutory dues as at March 31, 2022 which have not been deposited on account of a

dispute, are as follows:

Name of the Nature of Amounts (*) Period to which the Forumwhere

statute dues amounts relates dispute is pending
Rs.In Lakhs

ValueAdded VAT 0.83 2017-18(TillJune FirstAppeal

TaxAct, 2003 2017)

CentralSales CST 0.31 2017-18 (TillJune FirstAppeal

TaxAct, 1953 2017)



Income Tax Income Tax 11.11 AY 2012-13 ITAT

Act, 1961

Income Tax Income Tax 25.98 AY 2013-14 ITAT

Act, 1961

Income Tax Income Tax 4.12 AY2014-15 ITAT

Act, 1961

((*) Net of taxes paid under protest)

VIII. As disclosed in note no. 44(viii) to the accountsand as verified by us, there were no transactions

which were not recorded in the books of account, have been surrendered or disclosed as income

during the year in the tax assessmentsunder the IncomeTaxAct, 1961;

IX. (a)The company hasnot defaulted in repaymentof loansor other borrowings or in the payment of

interest thereon to any lender during the year;

(b) As disclosed in note no. 44(ix) to the accounts and as verified by us, the company is not

declaredaswilful defaulter by any bankor financial institution or other lender;

(c) The company has utilised the fund of term loan for the purpose for which the loans were

obtained;

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short­

term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the

Company.

(e) According to the information and explanationsgiven to us, and the recordsexaminedby us, the

company has no subsidiaries,associatesor joint ventures.Accordingly, reporting under the clause

3 (ix)(e)and (f) is not applicable.

X. TheCompany hasnot raisedmoneysby way of initial public offer or further public offer (including

debt instruments)during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a)of the Order is not

applicable;



(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of

shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause

3(x)(b)of the Order is not applicable.

XI. (a) During the course of our examination of the books of account and records of the Company,

carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to

the information and explanations given to us, we have neither came across any incidence of fraud

on or by the Company noticed or reported during the year, nor we have been informed of any such

case by the management;

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination of

the records no fraud on or by the Company noticed or reported during the course of audit.

Accordingly reporting under this clause is not applicable;

(c) According to the information and explanations provided to us, no whistle-blower complaints

have received during the year by the company.

XII. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not

applicable;

XIII. In our opinion, all the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and

188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the

Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards;

XIV. (a) In our opinion and the records examined by us, the company has an internal audit system

commensurate with the size and nature of its business;

(b)We have considered report of the internal auditors for the period under audit;

XV. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the

records, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with the directors or persons

connected with them. Hence, the provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable;



XVI. (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the ReseNe

Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not

applicable;

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core

Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause

3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable;

XVII. The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding

financial year;

XVIII. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year;

XIX. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our

knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the

evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to

believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that

Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when

they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this

is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is

based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any

assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will

get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due;

XX. (a)According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the

records, company is not required to transfer any unspent amount to a Fund specified in Schedule

VII to the Companies Act within period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in

compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act from the date the

section became effective i.e 22.1.2021.



(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the

records, company has transferred amount remaining unspent under section 135(5) of the

companies act pursuant to any ongoing project, to special account in compliance with the

provision of section 135(6) of the said Act.

(Rs. in lakhs)

Financial Amount Unspent Amount Due date Actual date Number of

Year identified for amount of Transferred of transfer of transfer days of

spending on (b) to Special to the to the delay if any

Corporate Account uls account account

Social 135(6)

Responsibility

activities for

"Ongoing

Projects"

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g)

2020-21 22.71 11.06 11.06 30104/2021 20104/2021 Nil

2021-22 33.06 19.93 19.97 30104/2022 22/04/2022 Nil

XXI. According to the information and explanations provided by the management, the company hasno

subsidiary, associatesor joint venture and the company is not required to prepare Consolidated

Financial Statements as per the section 129 of the Companies Act. Accordingly reporting under

clause3(xxi)is not applicable to the Company.

For, C N K & Associates LLP
Chartered accountants
FRN:101961W/w-100036

Alok B. Shah
Partner
Membership No. 042005
Date: 15th September, 2022
Place:Vadodara
UDIN: 22042005ASLSCV3890

------------ - - - -



ANNEXURE "B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SPC L1FESCIENCESPRIVATE

LIMITED ("the Company") as of 31st March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statementsof the Companyfor the yearended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal FinancialControls

The Boardof Directorsof the company is responsiblefor establishingand maintaining internalfinancial

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of

InternalFinancialControls over FinancialReporting issuedby the Institute of CharteredAccountantsof

India.Theseresponsibilitiesinclude the design, implementation and maintenanceof adequate internal

financialcontrolswith referenceto financialstatementsof the Companythat were operating effectively

for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective

company'spolicies, the safeguardingof its assets,the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,

the accuracyand completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable

financialinformation,as required under the CompaniesAct, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to expressan opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial

reporting basedon our audit. We conducted our audit in accordancewith the GuidanceNote on Audit
of Internal FinancialControls over FinancialReporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standardson

Auditing prescribedunder section 143(10)of the CompaniesAct, 2013, to the extent applicable to an

audit of internalfinancialcontrols.ThoseStandardsand the GuidanceNote require that we complywith

ethical requirementsand plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonableassuranceabout whether

adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the company were

establishedandmaintainedand if suchcontrolsoperated effectivelyin all material respects.

Our audit involvesperforming proceduresto obtain audit evidenceabout the adequacyof the internal

financial controls with reference to financial statements of the company and their operating

effectiveness.Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an

understandingof internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessingthe risk that a material

weaknessexists,and testing and evaluatingthe design and operating effectivenessof internal control

basedon the assessedrisk.The proceduresselecteddepend on the auditor's judgment, including the

assessmentof the risksof material misstatementof the FinancialStatements,whether due to fraud or

error.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A

company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;(2) provide reasonable assurance that

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are

being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,

use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial

statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal

financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal

financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.



Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

Company has, in all material respects, an internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements of the Company and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating

effectively as at 31st March, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal FinancialControls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute

of CharteredAccountants of India.

For, C N K & Associates LLP
Charteredaccountants
FRN:101961W/w-100036

Alok B. Shah
Partner
Membership No. 042005
Date: 15th September, 2022
Place:Vadodara
UDIN: 22042005ASLSCV3890



SPC Lifesciences Private Limited
CIN : U2423OGJ2005PTC046252
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022
All Amounts Are Rs. InLakhs Unless Otherwise Stated

Sr. Note As on 31st March, As on 31st March, As on 1st April, 2020

No.
Particulars No 2022 2021

ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 5,585.01 4,147.59 3,199.98
(b) Capital work-in-progress 4 1,475.70 11.00 347.50
(c) Intangible Assets 5 25.99 34.65 43.31
(d) Right of Use Asset 6 7.63 15.27 22.90
(e) Financial assets

(i) Investments 7 - - 62.55
(ii) Other financial assets

I
8 143.14 133.93 138.08

(f) Other non-current assets 9 228.19 29.09 66.26

7,465.66 4,371.54 3,880.59

(2) Current assets I(a) Inventories 10 2,006.01 1,785.99 974.65
(b) Financial assets

I(i) Trade receivables 11 4,120.71 3,303.99 2,732.98
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 7.94 594.25 48.97
(iii) Loans 13 2.71 0.12 5.87
(iv) Other financial assets 14 1.59 92.00 2.21

(c) Other current assets 15 202.51 134.43 146.90

6,341.47 5,910.77 3,911.58

Total Assets I 13,!!OJ.13 1028230 7792.17

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES I
EQUITY
(a)Equity share capital 16 1,117.36 1,117.36 279.34
(b)Other equity 17 5,752.49 3,814.93 2,984.46

6,869.85 4,932.29 3,263.80

LIABILITIES
(1) Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 1,929.95 957.93 779.23
(ii) Lease liabilities 19 - 8.28 15.90

(b) Long term Provisions 20 12.06 14.17 39.02
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 21 182.07 144.86 85.03

2,124.08 1,125.24 919.17

(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities I

(i) Borrowings 22 2,263.50 1,545.13 1,753.42
(ii) Trade payables 23

-Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and sma 11ent.erprises 400.32 488.65 369.15
-Total outstanding dues other than Micro and small enterprises 1,693.04 1,817.88 1,130.32

(iii) Lease liabilities 19 8.28 7.62 7.01
(iv) Other financial liabilities 24 4.09 6.49 4.04

(b) Other current liabilities 25 332.05 337.97 311.93
(c) Short term Provisions 26 26.27 21.04 21.48
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 27 85.65 - 11.85

4,813.20 4,224.78 3,609.19

Total Equity and Liabilities 13807.13 10282.30 7792.17

RDDudhat
Director
DIN : 00030853

See accompanvmg notes formmg part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For C N K &Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN:-101961 WfW-100036

~-~~
Partner
Mem No : 042005
Place: Vadodara
Date: 15th September, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Company Secretary
M. No.: A32789

Place iVadodara
Date : 15th September, 2022



SPC Lifesciences Private Limited
CIN : U24230GJ2005PTC046252
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2022
All Amounts Are Rs. In Lakhs Unless Otherwise Stated

Sr
Note For the year ended For the year ended

No
Particulars No 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Revenue from operations 28 14,564.13 13,294.90

Other income 29 80.08 319.26

(I) Total Income 14,644.21 13,614.16

EXPENSES
Manufacturing and operating expense
Cost of materials consumed 30 8,948.43 8,960.95
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and 31 (317.47) (622.37)

Stock-in-Trade
Employee benefits expenses 32 1,447.11 1,280.23

Finance costs 33 247.42 168.48

Depreciation & Amortization Expense 3&5 247.89 183.83

Other expenses 34 1,483.17 1,421.59

(II) Total expenses 12,056.55 11,392.70

(III) Profit before tax (I-II) 2,587.66 2,221.46

(IV) Tax Expense:
Current tax 632.41 510.66

Deferred tax 32.29 59.24

Income Tax adjustments for earlier years - (15.14
664.70 554.75

(V) Profit for the year (III-IV) 1,922.95 1,666.71

(VI) Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of Defined benefit plans 19.52 2.37

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss
- Remeasurement of Defined benefit plans (4.91) (0.60)

Total other comprehensive income 14.61 1.77

(VII) Total comprehensive income for the period (V+VI) 1,937.56 1,668.48

Earnings per equity share (Refer Note 37(A))
(1) Basic 17.21 14.69

1(2) Diluted 17.21 14.69

See accompanying notes fornung part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For C N K & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN:-I01961WjW"-100036

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
SPC lifesciences Private Limited

AlokShah
Partner
Mem No: 042005
Place: Vadodara
Date : 15th September, 2022

Managing Director
DIN : 00165190

~
Makwana

Company Secretary
M. No.: A32789

Place: Vadodara
Date: 15th September, 2022



SPC Lifesciences Private Limited
CIN : U24230GJ2005PTC046252
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022
All Amounts Are Rs. In Lakhs Unless Otherwise Stated

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before income tax 2,587.66 2,221.46

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 247.89 183.83
Interest Income (4.82) (7.02)
Finance Costs 247.42 168.48
(Gain) I Loss on sale of investments - (59.47)
Provision for Doubtful Debts (ECL) 4.04 1.43
Loss on sale of Asset 5.46 -

Operating profit before working capital changes 3,087.64 2,508.71

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) I Decrease in Trade receivables (820.76) (572.45)
(Increase) I Decrease in Inventories (220.02) (811.34)
(Increase) I Decrease in Loans (2.59) 5.76
(Increase) I Decrease in Other Financial Assets 80.44 (85.50)
(Increase) I Decrease in Other Current Assets (68.08) 12.48
(Increase) I Decrease in Other Non Current Assets 0.00 (26.24)
Increase I (Decrease) in Trade Payables (213.17) 807.06
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities (2.40) -

Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions 22.64 (22.92)
Increase I (Decrease) in Other Liabilities (5.93) 28.50

Cash generated from operations : 1,857.77 1,844.05

Direct taxes paid (net) (546.76) (507.36)

Net cash from operating activities (A) 1,311.02 1,336.69

B Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment (PPE) (including Capital work-in-progress) (3,145.67) (778.64)
Sale of Property, Plant and equipment 6.50 -

Capital advances (199.09) 63.41
Sale of Investments - 122.02
Interest received 5.57 6.88

Net cash (used) in Investing activities (B) (3,332.69) (586.33)

C Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from long term borrowings 1,410.95 636.00
Repayment of long term borrowings (543.78) (457.30)
Increase I (Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings 823.22 (208.29)
Payment of Lease Libility (9.00) (9.00)
Finance Costs paid (246.03) (166.49)

Net cash (used) in financing activities (C) 1,435.36 (205.08

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS [(A) + (B)+ (C)] (586.31) 545.28

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
Balances with banks in current accounts and deposit account 593.42 48.43
Cash on hand 0.83 0.54

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS PER NOTE 12 594.25 48.97

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR
Balances with banks in current accounts and deposit account 7.28 593.42
Cash on hand 0.65 0.83

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS PER NOTE 12 7.94 594.25

As per our report of even date
For C N K &Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN:-I01961WIW-I00036

~.~~
AlokShah
Partner
Mem No : 042005
Place :Vadodara
Date : 15th September, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
SPC lifesciences PriVa~ted

\::,,',.,
Managing Director

DIN: 00165190

Place: Vadodara
Date : 15th September, 2022



SPC Lifesciences Private Limited
CIN : U24230GJ2005PTC046252
Statement of Changes In Equity For The Year Ended 31st March, 2022
All Amounts Are Rs. In Lakhs Unless Otherwise Stated

Equity Share Capital

Other Equity

1,666.71
1.77

1,666.71
1.77

(688.02) (838.02)

1.77

Balance as at 1st April, 2021
Dividends
Profit for the year
Remeasurement of the Net
benefit liability/asset, net of tax effect
Balance as at 31st 2022

14.61

16.38

Director
DIN : 00030853

Managing Director
D~190

~M;'W~
Company Secretary

M.No.:A32789

Note: See accompanyingnotes referred to above which form an integral part of the FinancialStatements.

As per our report of even date
ForC NK&Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN:-101961W/W-100036

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors

Alok Shah
Partner
Mem No : 042005
Place: Vadodara
Date : 15thSeptember,2022

S~~=~:;:d
RDDudhat Snehal R Patel

Place: Vadodara
Date: 15thSeptember,2022



SPC Lifesciences Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Ind AS financial statements

1 Corporate Information
SPC Lifesciences Private Limited is, domiciled in India and incorporated on 15th June, 2005 and engaged in the business of
manufacturing of pharmaceutical formulations.

2 Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Notes
2.1 Basis of Preparation
i. Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards CInd AS") notified under section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 Cthe Act"), Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act as applicable.

The financial statements up to year ended 31st March, 2021 were prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards notified
under section 133 of the Act read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 ("Indian GAAP") and other
relevant provisions of the Act as applicable.

These financial statements are the Company's first lnd AS financial statements and are covered by Ind AS 101- First time Adoption
of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition to Ind AS has been carried out from the accounting principles generally accepted
in India ("Indian GAAP") which is considered as the 'Previous GAAP' for purposes of Ind AS 101. An explanation of how the
transition to Ind AS has affected the Company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows is provided in Note 42 of
the financial statement.

ii. Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except the following:
• Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;
• Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

iii. Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency, and all values are
rounded to the nearest lakhs, except otherwise indicated.

iv. Composition of Financial Statements
The financial statements are accordance with Ind AS presentation. The financial statements comprise:
- Balance Sheet
- Statement of Profit and Loss
- Statement of Changes in Equity

- Statement of Cash Flow
- Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 Significant Accounting Policies

A Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
-It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
-It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
-There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelvemonths after the reporting period
The Company classifiesall other liabilitiesas non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitiesare classifiedas non-current assets and liabilities.



SPC Lifesciences Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Ind AS financial statements

B Property, Plant and Equipment:
Recognition and measurement:
Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, which includes
capitalized borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation, and impairment loss, if any. Cost includes purchase price, including
non-refundable duties and taxes, expenditure that is directly attributable to bring the assets to the location and condition
necessary for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located, if any. ~

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognized
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees, and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the
Company's accounting policies. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Spare parts are treated as capital assets when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment. Otherwise, such items are
classified as inventory.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for, as separate
items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gains or losses on their disposal, determined by comparing sales
proceeds with carrying amount, are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Subsequent Expenditure:
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will
flow to the Company.

De-Recognition:
An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from its use. Any gain or 105sarising from its de-recognition is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is de-recognised.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment
recognized as at April 1, 2020 measured as per the Previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost (except to the
extent of any adjustment permissible under other accounting standard) of the property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided using the straight-line method (SLM)based on the life and in the
manner prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, and is generally recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Cost
of Lease hold is amortised over the tenure of lease agreement. Freehold land is not depreciated. Incase where the cost of part of
asset is significant to total cost of the asset and useful life of that part is different from the useful life of the remaining assets, the
useful life of that significant part has been determined seperately.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. Based
on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best
represent the period over which management expects to use these assets. Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a
pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

Capital Work-in-Progress:
Plant and properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognized impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying asset, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance
with the Company's accounting policies. Such plant and Properties are classified and capitalized to the appropriate categories of
Property, Plant and Equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the asset are ready for their intended use.



SPC Lifesciences Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Ind AS financial statements

Amortization:
Intangible Assets are amortized over the estimated economic life of 3 years to 10 years.

C Intangible Assets:
Recognition and measurement:
Intangible assets are recognized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow
to the enterprise and the cost of the assets can be measured reliably. Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment, if any.

De-recognition of Intangible Assets:
Intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is de-recognized.

D Impairment of Non financial assets:
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (CGU) to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGU for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

The Company's corporate assets do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset,
recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other
assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

E Inventories:
Inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventories is determined on a FIFO, after providing for
obsolescence and other losses as considered necessary. Cost includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, reduction
and conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
selling expenses.

Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are not written down below cost except in
cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed their net realizable
value.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-basis.

F Financial Instruments:
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.

Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase,
to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Financial assets at amortized cost
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method if these financial assets are held
within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the

.....JliEllfftm...(!assetgive rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount



SPC Lifesciences Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Ind AS financial statements

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.
The Company has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of
equity investments not held for trading.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Impairment of Financial assets
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109
requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all
contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected
credit losses are measured at an amount equal to 12 months expected credit losses or at an amount equal to lifetime expected
losses, if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

The company follows' simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
- Trade receivables and
- Other receivables

The application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not reduce impairment allowance from
the gross carrying amount.

Derecognition of financial assets
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, (except for equity instruments designated as FVTOCI), the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Liabilities:
Initial recognition and Measurement:
The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings. All financialliabillties are recognized
initially at fair value and in the case of loans, borrowings and payabIes recognized net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement:
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by lnd AS 109.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings:
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the ElR
method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the ErR



SPC Lifesciences Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Ind AS financial statements

Derecognition:
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Off-setting of financial instruments:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

G Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

H Foreign Currency Translation:
Initial Recognition:
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange
rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion:
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical
cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction and non-monetary items
which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates
that existed when the values were determined.

Revenue Recognition:
Effective 1st April, 2020, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers", Revenue from contracts
with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company assesses
promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of transaction price is allocated.

Sale of Goods:
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally
on the delivery of the goods.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a
portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price, the Company considers the effects of
variable consideration, the existence of significant financing component and consideration payable to the customer like return and
trade discounts.

Sales are disclosed excluding net of sales returns and Goods and Service Tax (GST).

Sale of Scrap:
Revenue from sale of scrap is recognized as and when scrap is sold.

Export Benefits:
Duty free imports of raw materials under Advance License for imports as per the Import and Export Policy are matched with the
exports made against the said licenses and the net benefit! obligation is accounted by making suitable adjustments in raw material
consumption.



SPC Lifesciences Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Ind AS financial statements

Contract balances
Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer e.g. unbilled revenue. If
the Company performs by transferring goods or servicesto a customer before the customer pays considerationor before payment
is due, a contract asset i.e.unbilled revenue is recognizedfor the earned considerationthat is conditional.

Contract liabilities
A contract liabilityis the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration
(or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company
performsunder the contract.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a
portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price, the Company considers the effectsof
variable consideration, the existence of significant financing component, non-cash component and consideration payable to the
customer like return, allowances,trade discounts and volume rebates.

Salesare disclosedexcludingnet of sales returns, servicetax,value added tax and Goods and ServicesTax (GST).

Revenue from sale of Service
Revenuefrom servicerelated activitiesis recognized as and when servicesare rendered and on the basis of contractual terms with
the parties.

J Other Income:
Interest income:
Interest incomefrom the financialassets is recognized on a time basis, by reference to the principle outstanding using the effective
interest method provided it is probable that the economicbenefits associated with the interest will flow to the Company and the
amount of interest can be measured reliably. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected lifeof the financialasset to the gross carrying amount of that financialasset.

Other income is accounted for an accrual bais for exceptwhere the receipt of income is uncertain in which case it is accounted for
on receiptbasis.

K Employee benefits:
Employee benefits includes short term employee benefits, contribution to defined contribution schemes, contribution to defined
benefitplan and Compensated absences.

Short-term Employee Benefits:
Liabilitiesfor wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employee's servicesup to the
end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employeebenefitobligationsin the balancesheet.

Contribution towards defined benefit contribution schemes:
Contribution towards provident fund and superannuation fund is made to the regulatory authorities. Contributions to the above
scheme are charged to the Statement of profit and loss in the year when the contributions are due. Suchbenefits are classifiedas
defined ContributionSchemesas the Company does not carry any further obligations,apart from the contributions to be made.

Defined benefit Plan:
Gratuity plan:
TheCompany has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Everyemployeewho has completed five years or more of serviceis eligiblefor
gratuity on post employment at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service as per the rules of the
Company. The aforesaid liability is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at
the end of the financial year. The scheme is funded with an insurance Company in the form of a qualifying insurance policy.
Current servicecost .Past-servicecosts are recognised immediately in Statementof profit or loss.

-------



SPC Lifesciences Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Ind AS financial statements

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or
credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. They are included in retained earnings in the
statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Compensated Absences:
Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months from the end of the year end
are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating
compensated absences as the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months from the end of the year
end are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit
Credit method) at the end of each year. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of government bonds. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

L Borrowing costs:
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

M Income taxes:
The tax expense comprises of current income tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax:
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in India. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishesprovisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax:
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilitiesand their carrying amounts in the standalone financialstatements. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transactionaffectsneither accountingnor taxableprofit nor loss.Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
incometax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liabilityis settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differencesonly if it is probable that future taxableamounts will be
available to utilize those temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilitiesare not recognised for temporary differencesbetween the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest in joint arrangements where the Company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differencesand it is probable that the differenceswill not reverse in the foreseeablefuture.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

N Provisions and Contingent liabilities and contingent assets:
a) Provisions:
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and are liable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain.The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specificto the liability.When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a financecost.

Provisionsare reviewed at eachbalance sheet and adjusted to reflectthe current best estimates.

b) Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets:
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existencewill be confirmedby the occurrenceor
non-occurrenceof one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that
is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably.TheCompany does not recognizea contingent liabilitybut disclosesits existencein the financialstatements.

A contingent assets is not recognised unless it becomesvirtually certain that an inflow of economicbenefitswill arise. When an
inflowof economicbenefitsis probable, contigent assets are disclosedin the financialstatements.

Contingent liabilitiesand contingentassets are reviewed at eachbalancesheet date.

o Earnings per Share:
Basicearnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fractionof an
equity share to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the
reporting period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

PLeases:
As a lessee
The Company's leased assets primarily consist of leases for building. The Company assesseswhether a contract contains a lease,
at inception of a contract.A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchangefor consideration.To assesswhether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Company assesseswhether:
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At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a
lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases and corresponding Right-of­
use Asset. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Right-of-use Assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable,using the incrementalborrowing rates in the
country of domicileof these leases.Lease liabilitiesare remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use
asset if the Companychangesits assessment if whether it will exercisean extensionor a terminationoption.

Q Segment reporting:
Based on "ManagementApproach" as defined in Ind AS 108-Operating Segments, evaluates the Company's performance and
allocates the resources based on an analysis of various performance. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the
geographicallocationof the customerswherever required.

Unallocableitems includes generalcorporate incomeand expenseitemswhichare not allocated to any businesssegment.

Segment Policies:
TheCompany prepares its segment information in conformitywith the accountingpoliciesadopted for preparing and presenting
the financial statements of the Company as a whole. Common allocablecosts are allocated to each segment on an appropriate
basis.

2.3 Use of Judgements, EstimatesAnd Assumptions:
The preparation of the Company's separate financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,assets and liabilities,and the accompanyingdisclosures,and the disclosureof
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carryingamount of assets or liabilitiesaffectedin future periods.

Estimates and assumptions:
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significantrisk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitieswithin the next financialyear, are
described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the separate financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstancesand assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptionswhen they occur.

a. Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits):
A liabilityin respect of definedbenefitplans is recognisedin the balancesheet, and is measured as the present value of the defined
benefitobligationat the reporting date less the fair value of the plan's assets.The present value of the definedbenefitobligationis
based on expectedfuture payments whicharise from the fund at the reporting date, calculatedannually by independent actuaries.
Considerationis given to expectedfuture salary levels,experienceof employeedepartures and periods of service.

b. Taxes:
There are many transactions and calculations undertaken during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts initially recorded, such
differenceswill impact the current and deferred tax provisions in the period in which the tax determination is made. The
assessmentof probability involvesestimationof a number of factorsincluding future taxableincome.
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d. Impairment of financial assets:
The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model on trade receivables. The Company uses a
provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its
historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

e. Impairment of non-financial assets:
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indicationexists,
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverableamount. An asset' :
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group
of assets.Where the carrying amount of an asset exceedsits recoverableamount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverableamount. In assessingvalue in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre- tax discount rate that reflectscurrent market assessmentof the time value ofmoney and the risk specificto the asset.
In determining fair value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified,an appropriate valuationmodel is used.

These calculationsare corroborated by valuationmultiples, quoted share price for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available
fair value indicators.

f.Other Provisions:
Significantestimatesare involved in the determinationof provisions.Legalproceedingsoften involvecomplexlegal issues and are
subjectto substantial uncertainties.Accordingly,considerablejudgment is part of determiningwhether it is probable that there is
a present obligation as a result of a past event at the end of the reporting period, whether it is probable that such a Legal
Proceedingwill result in an outflowof resourcesand whether the amount of the obligationcan e reliablyestimated.

2.4 Recent Pronoucement
The followingstandards I amendments to standards have been issued and will be effectivefrom 1st April 2022.The Company is
evaluating the requirements of these standards, improvements and amendments and has not yet determined the impact on the
financialstatements.

A Indian Accounting Standard (IndAS)103
BusinessCombinations - Qualificationsprescribed for recognitionof the identifiable assets acquired and liabilitiesassumed, as
part of applying the acquisitionmethod - should meet the definition of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for
FinancialReportingunder Ind AS(ConceptualFramework)issued by the ICAIat the acquisitiondate.

Modificationto the exceptionsto recognitionprinciplerelating to contingentliabilitiesand contingentassets acquired in a business
combinationat the acquisitiondate.

B Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)109
FinancialInstruments - Modificationin accountingtreatment ofcertaincostsincurred on derecognitionof financialliabilities.

C Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)16
Property, Plant and Equipment - Modification in treatment of excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of
testingas part of cost of an item ofproperty, plant, and equipment.

D Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)37
Provisions,ContingentLiabilitiesand ContingentAssets - Modificationsin applicationof recognitionand measurementprinciples
relating to onerous contracts.
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6 Right of Use Asset
Particulars As on 31st March, Ason 31st As on 1st

2022 March, 2021 April, 2020

Gross Block
Opening balance 22.90 22.90
Addition durinz the year - - 22.90
Closinz balance 22.90 22.90 22.90

Depreciation Block
Opening balance (7.63)
Depreciation charged durin" the vear (7.63) (7.63
Closinz balance (15.27) (7.63

Net Block 7.63 15.27 22.90

7 Investments
Particulars As on 31st March, As on 31st As on 1st

2022 March, 2021 April, 2020

Investments at Fair Value Through Profit &Loss
Investment in PMS

- ICICIPrudential AMCLimited - - 62.55
Total (B) - - 62.55

Total- (A+B) - - 6255

8 Other Financial Assets
Particulars As on 31st March, As on 31st As on 1st

2022 March, 2021 April, 2020

Unsecured, considened good
Security Deposits 82.56 75.95 66.02
Bank deposits with more than 12months maturity 60.58 57.98 72.06

Total 143.14 133.93 138.08

9 Other Non Current Assets
Particulars As on 31st March, As on 31st As on 1st

2022 March, 2021 April, 2020

Unsecured, considened good
Capital Advances 201.94 2.85 66.26
Advance Tax( Net of Provision of Income Tax) 26.24 26.24 -
Total 228.19 29.09 66.26

10 Inventories
(At lower of cost and net realizable value)
Particulars As on 31st March, As on 31st As on 1st

2022 March, 2021 April, 2020

Raw materials 385.10 505.89 356.94

Work-in-process 681.37 479.62 532.46

Finished goods (other than those acquired for trading) 847.37 731.66 56.44

Stores and spares 86.45 60.98 12.23

Packing Materials 5.70 7.84 16.57

Total 2,(lO6.01 1,785.99 974.65
Notes
(i) The above inventories are pledged as securities to the bankers on pari passu basis against the fund based and non fund based credit limits availed or to be availed by the
Company.
(ii) During the year and in previous year there are no instances with respect to write down of inventories from cost to net realizable value, nor there have been any reversal of
the write down.

11 Trade Receivables
Particulars As on 31st March, As on 31st As on 1st

2022 March, 2021 April, 2020

Trade receivable Unsecured, considered good 4,122.49 3,301.73 2,729.28
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 13.01 13.01 13.01
Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired
Less: Expected Credit Loss (ECL) (14.79) (10.75) (9.32)

Total 4,120.71 3,303.99 2,732.98
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11.1 Trade Receivables Ageing summary:
Particulars Less than 6 6 Months-1 1-2years 2-3 Years More than 3 Total

Months year Years
As at nst March, 2022
(i)Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good 4,115.03 0.03 7.43 - - 4,122.49
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - which have significant increase in - - - - 13.01 13.01
credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - credit impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivable - which have significant increase in - - - -
credit risk
I (vi) Disputed Trade Receivable - credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 4,115.03 0.03 7.43 - 13.01 4,135.50
Less: Expected Credit Loss (ECL) - - - - (14.79)
Total Trade Receivable 4115.03 0.03 7.43 - 13.01 4120.71

As at 31st March, 2021
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good 3,301.68 0.04 - - - 3,301.73
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - which have significant increase in - - - - 13.01 13.01
credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - credit impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivable - which have significant increase in - - - - - -
credit risk
I (vi) Disputed Trade Receivable - credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 3,301.68 0.04 - - 13.01 3,314.74
Less: Expected Credit Loss (ECL) - - - - - (10.75)
Total Trade Receivable 3,301.68 0.04 - - 13.01 3,303.99

As at O1stApril, 2020
(i)Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good 2,729.'l2 0.02 0.04 13.01 2,742.29
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - which have significant increase in - - - -
credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - credit impaired - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivable - which have significant increase in - - - -
credit risk
I (vi) Disputed Trade Receivable - credit impaired - - - - -
Total 2,729.22 0.02 0.04 - 13.01 2,742.29
Less: Expected Credit Loss (ECL) - - - - - (9.32
Total Trade Receivable 2729.22 0.02 0.04 - 13.01 2732.98

12 C d hash an cas lequiva ents
Particulars As on 31st March, As on 31st As on 1st

2022 March,2021 April,202O

Balances with banks
In current accounts 7.28 593.42 48.43

Cash in hand 0.65 0.83 0.54
Total 7.94 594.25 48.97

13 Loans
Particulars As on 31st March, As on 31st As on 1st

2022 March,2021 April,202O

Unsecured, considered good
Advances to employees 2.71 0.12 5.87

Total 2.71 0.12 5.87

14 Other Financial Assets
Particulars As on 31st March, As on 31st As on 1st

2022 March,2021 April, 2020

Unsecured, considered good
Interest accrued on deposits 1.59 2.34 2.21
Other receivables 89.66

Total 1.59 92.00 2.21
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15 Other Current Assets
Particulars As on 31st March, As on 31st As on 1st

2022 March,1021 April,2020

Unsecured, considered good
Advances to suppliers & Others 77.65 38.17 25.70
Expenses paid in advance 31.62 25.21 24.40
Balanceswith Government authorities 85.69 71.05 96.80
Balance with Gratuitv Fund (Refer Note. 37 (B» 7.55 - -
Total 202.51 134.43 146.90

18 Borrowings
Particulars As on 31st March, As on 31st As on 1st

2022 March,2021 April,lOlO

Secured - at amortized cost
(a) Term Loans
(i) From Banks (Refer note (i) and (ii))

State Bank of India - Term Loan-L 264.00 276.00 290.50
State Bank of India - Term Loan-2 215.99 288.00 250.76
SIDBI- Foreign Currency Term Loan - - 374.52
SIDB!- Term Loan - - 87.32
Axis Bank Ltd. - Vehicle Loan 59.27 77.58 94.32
HDFC Bank Ltd. - Vehicle Loan - 1.92 9.15
HDFC Bank Ltd. - Term Loan 1,357.95
ICICI Bank Ltd. - Vehicle Loan 36.36 62.15 84.77
DBSBank - Foreign Currency Term Loan - 1 0.00 146.22 -

DBSBank - Foreign Currency Term Loan - 2 (0.00) 25.04 -

State Bank of India - COVID Assistance Loan - 1 - 120.00 -
State Bank of India - COVIDAssistance Loan - 2 354.64 456.00 -
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited - Vehicle Loan 57.99 16.69 -

Total (i) 2,346.20 1,469.59 1,191.34
(ii) From Financial Institutions

Reliance Commercial Finance Ltd. - Equipment Loan 0.00 9.44 21.43
Total (ii) 0.00 9.44 21.43

Total (i) + (ii) 2,346.21 1,479.03 1,212.77
Less: Current maturities of term loans 416.25 521.10 669.68

Total Secured Loans 1,929.95 957.93 543.09

Unsecured Loans
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - - 236.14

Total Un Secured Loans - - 236.14

Total 1,929.95 957.93 779.23

Note 18 (i) Nature of security:

(a) State Bank of India - Term Loan 1
The loan is primarily secured by way of hypothecation of plant and machineries acquired out of above loan and Equitable Mortgage of Land & Building situated at Plot
No.3611/1,2,3 & 4, GIDC, Ankleshwar, Dist Bharuch. Interest Rate is at 1.75% above State Bank 6 Month - MCLR of 6.65%. Present effective rate is 8.70%. The loan is
repayable in 60 installments of which 36 equal monthly Installments of Rs. 1,00,0001- and 24 equal monthly installments of Rs. 11,00,0001-·

(b) State Bank of India - Term Loan 2
The loan is primarily secured by way of hypothecation of plant and machineries acquired out of above loan and Equitable Mortgage of Land & Building situated at Plot
No.3611/1,2,3 & 4, GIDC, Ankleshwar, Dist Bharuch. Interest Rate is at 1.7S%above State Bank 6 Month - MCLR of 6.6S%. Present effective rate is 8.70%. The loan was
repayable in 60 equal monthly installments of Rs. 6,00,0001-·
The above loans from State Bank of India are further secured by way of hypothecation charge of all other plant and machineries of the company and equitable mortgage of
Land & Building situated at Block No 0-72, S. No77 and 78, Alka Co-operative housing Society Ltd, Akota Vadodara standing in the name of one of the director of the
company. The above loans are also secured by way of extension of hypothecation charge on stocks, book debts and all current assets of the company and also by way of
personal guarantee of all the directors of the company.

(c)SIDBT- Foreign Currency Term Loan
The above loans are primarily secured by way of hypothecation of plant and machineries acquired out of above loan and Equitable Mortgage of Land &Building situated at
Plot No. 3612, GIDC, Ankleshwar, Dist Bharuch. The loan is also secured by way of personal guarantee of all the directors of the company. Interest Rate is 700 bps over 6
monthly USDLIBORwith monthly rests. Loan is repayable in 66Monthly installments.

(d) SIDBI - Term Loan
The above loans are secured by way of second charge on plant and machineries and Land & Building situated at Plot No. 3612,GIDC, Ankleshwar, Dist Bharuch. Further, the
loans is secured by way of residual charge on plant and machineries and Land & Building situated at Plot No. 3611/1,2,3 & 4, GIDC, Ankleshwar, Dist Bharuch. The loan is
also secured by way of personal guarantee of all the directors of the company Interest Rate is 1S.50%with monthly rests. Loan is repayable in 48 equal monthly installments of
Rs. S,15,000/-.
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(f) HOFC Bank Ltd. - Term Loan
The loan is primarily secured by way of hypothecation charge on stocks, book debts and all current assets of the company and plant and machineries acquired out of above loan
and Equitable Mortgage of plot situated at Plot No.D/3/27/3, GIDC Dahej, Dist Bharuch and also secured by way of personal guarantee of all the managing director and
director of the company. Interest Rate is at 1.75%above State Bank 6 Month - MCLR of 6.65%. Present effective rate is 8.70%. The loan was repayable in % equal monthly
installments after last drwal of the loan i.e. after March, 2023/-.

(g) HDFC Bank Ltd. - Vehicle Loan
Secured by way of Hypothecation of Endeavor. Interest Rate is 9.37%with monthly rests. Loan is repayable in 60 equal monthly installments of Rs. 64,885/-.

(h) ICICI Bank Ltd. - Vehicle Loan
(i) lCICIBank Ltd. - Vehicle Loan-1
Secured by way ofHypothecation of Ford Mustang GT. Interest Rate is 9.25%with monthly rests. Loan is repayable in 60 equal monthly installments of Rs. 1,32,591/-.

(ii) lOCIBank Ltd. Vehicle Loan-2
Secured by way of Hypothecation of Mercedes. Interest Rate is 9.25%with monthly rests. Loan is repayable in 60 equal monthly installments of Rs. 1,10,438/-.

(i)OBS Bank - Foreign Currency Term Loan -1
The above loans are primarily secured by way of hypothication of plant and machineries aquired out of above loan and Equitable Mortgage of Land &Building situated at Plot
No. 3612, GIDC, Ankleshwar, Dist Bharuch. The loan is also secured by way of personal guarantee of all the directors of the company. Interest Rate is MCLR 8% p.a. for
overnight, 8% p.a for one month 7.90% for p.a for three months, 7.90% for p.a for six months and 7.50% p.a. for twelve months. Loan is repayble in 23 Equated monthly
installments to be repaid by December 21.

(j) OBS Bank - Foreign Currency Term Loan - 2
The above loans are secured by way of second charge on plant and machineries and Land & Building situated at Plot No. 3612,GlDC, Ankleshwar, Dist Bharuch. Further, the
loans is secured by way of residual charge on plant and machineries and Land & Building situated at Plot No. 3612GIDC, Ankleshwar, Dist Bharuch. The loan is also secured
by way of personal guarantee of all the directors of the company. Interest Rate is MCLR8% p.a. for overnight, 8% p.a for one month 7.90%for p.a for three months, 7.90%for
p.a for six months and 7.50%p.a. for twelve months. Loan is repayble in 19 Equated monthly installments to be repaid by August 21.

(k) State Bank of India - COVID Assistance Loan - 1
The loan is primarily secured by way of hypothication of stocks, book debts and all other current assets and Equitable Mortgage of Land & Building situated at Plot
No.3611/1,2,3 & 4, GIDC, Ankleshwar, Dist Bharuch. Interest Rate is at 0.75%above EBLRwhich is presently 6.65%p.a. rising of falling on daily products with monthly rest.
Present effective rate is 7.40%. The loan is repayable in 18 equal monthly Installments of Rs. 10,00,000/- after moratorium period of 6 months.

(1)State Bank of India - COVID Assistance Loan - 2
The loan is primarily secured by way of hypothecation of stocks, book debts and all other current assets and Equitable Mortgage of Land & Building situated at Plot
No.3611/1,2,3 &4, GIDC, Ankleshwar, Dist Bharuch. Interest Rate is at 0.75%above EBLRwhich is presently 6.65%p.a. rising of falling on daily products with monthly rest.
Present effective rate is 7.40%. The loan is repayable in 35 equal monthly Installments of Rs. 12,67,000/- & 1 installment of Rs. 12,55,000/- after moratorium period of 12
months.

(m)Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited - Vehicle Loan
Secured by way of Hypothecation of lnnova car. Interest Rate is 7.9S%with monthly rests. Loan is repayable in 60 equal monthly installments of Rs. 37,406/-,

(n) Reliance Commercial Finance Ltd. - Equipment Loan
(a) Reliance Commercial Finance Ltd. - ANFD Equipment Loan
Secured by way of Hypothecation of SS316Agitated Nutsche Filter Dryer (AN"FD).Interest Rate is 12.S0%with monthly rests. Loan is repayable in 48 equal monthly

(b) Reliance Commercial Finance Ltd. - MSGLANFD Loan
Secured by way of Hypothecation of MSGLGlasslined Agitated Nutsche Filter Dryer (GL ANFD). Interest Rate is 12.50%with monthly rests. Loan is repayable in 48 equal
monthly installments of Rs. 66,822/-.

Note 18 (ti): Maturity profile of Secured Term loans are set out below:

Particular Rs. In lakhs

o to 1 year 416.25
1 to 2 years 473.26
2 to 3 years 238.81
3 toS years 201.15
More than5 vears 1,016.73
Closing Balance 2,346.21

19 Lease Liabilities:
Particulars As on 31st March, As on 31st As on 1st

2022 March,2021 April,202O

Opening Balance 15.90 22.90
Addition during the year . 22.90
Finance Cost 1.38
Pa ear

22.90
7.01

Non current Liabilities 8.28 lS.90
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20 L Pro ..ong term VISIOns

Particulars As on 31st March, As on 31st As on 1st
2022 March,2021 April,2020

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences «Refer Note. 37 (B)(b)) 12.06 14.17 10.41
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note. 37 (B» - - 28.60
Total 12.06 14.17 39.02

21 Deferred tax( assets) / Liabilities net:
(a) Followinz is the analysis of deferred tax assetS/(iiabilities) presented in the Balance Sheet:

Particulars As on 31st March, As on 31st As on 1st
2022 March,2021 April, 2020

Deferred Tax Liability
Related to Property, Plant and Equipments and Intangible asset 195.44 155.79 99.17
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 5.51 0.60 -

Total 200.94 156.39 99.17
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision For Employee Benefit 15.16 8.82 11.80
Provision for Doubtful Debts 3.72 2.71 2.35
Total 18.88 11.53 14.14

Deferred tax (assets) / liabilities net 182.07 144.86 85.03

(b) Major Components of Deffered Tax Assets and Liabilities:

As at 31st March 2022:
Particulars Opening Recognised Recognised in Recognised in Others Closing

Balance in Retained Profit & Loss OCI Balance
Earnings

Deferred Tax Assets in relation to:
Employee benefit 9.46 5.70 - - 15.16
ECLProvision 2.71 1.02 - 3.72
Total Deferred Tax Assets 12.16 - I 6.71 I - -I 18.88
Deferred Tax Liabilities in relation to:
Property, Plant & Equipments 156.43 - 39.01 - - 195.44
Other Comprehensive Income - Defined Benefit Plan 0.60 - 4.91 - 5.51

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 157.02 - 39.01 4.91 - 200.94
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities 144.86 - 32.30 4.91 - 182.07

As at 31st March 2021"
Particulars Opening Recognised Recognised in Recognised in Others Closing

Balance in Retained Profit &Loss OCI Balance
Earnings

Deferred Tax Assets in relation to:
Employee benefit 11.80 (2.34) - - 9.46
ECLProvision - 2.35 0.36 - - 2.71
Total Deferred Tax Assets I 11.80 I 2.35 (1.98) - I - 12.16
Deferred Tax Liabilities in relation to:
Property, Plant & Equipments 107.29 (8.12) 57.25 - - 156.43
Other Comprehensive Income - Defined Benefit Plan - - - 0.60 - 0.60

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 107.29 (8.12) 57.25 0.60 - 157.02
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities 95.49 (10.46) 59.23 0.60 - 144.86

22 Borrowings
Particulars As on 31st March, As on 31st As on 1st

2022 March,2021 April,2020.
Secured
Loans repayable on demand-From Banks (Refer Note 22(i))

State Bank of India - Cash Credit Facilities 1,708.00 1,024.03 1,083.74
DBSBank India Limited - Cash Credit Facilities 139.24 - -

Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Note 18(i)) 416.25 521.10 669.68

Total 2,263.50 1,545.13 1,753.42

Note 22 (i) Nature of security:
State Bank of India



SPC Lifesclences Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
All Amounts Are Rs. In Lakhs Unless Otherwise Stated

DBS Bank India Limited
The loan is primarily secured by way of hypothecation of Stock, book debts and all current assets of the company. The loan is further secured by way of equitable mortgage of
land and building situated at Plot No.3612,GIDC, Ankleshwar, Dist Bharuch and personal guarantee of all directors of the company. Interest Rate is 1 Month - MCLR of 6.40%
+ 175bps. Present effective rate is 8.15%.

23 T d P blra e aya es
Particulars As on 31st March, As on 31st As on Is!

2022 March,2021 April,2020

Trade payables (Refer note 41 (A))
- Total outstanding dues ofMicro & Small Enterprises 400.32 488.65 369.15
- total outstanding dues other than Micro and small enterprises 1,693.04 1,817.88 1,130.32

Total 2,093.36 2,306.53 1,499.47

24.1 Trade Payables Ageing summary:

Particulars Less than 1 1-2years 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
year Years

As at 31st March, 2022
(i)MSME 393.96 6.36 - - 400.32
(ii) Others 1,691.64 1.40 - - 1,693.04
(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME - - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others - - - -

As at 31st March, 2021
(i)MSME 488.65 - - - 488.65
(ii) Others 1,817.88 - - 1,817.88
(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others - - - - -

As at 01st April, 2020
(i)MSME 369.15 - - - 369.15
(ii) Others 1,123.31 0.39 3.42 3.19 1,130.32
(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME - - - -

(iv) Disputed Dues - Others - - - - -

24 Oth r Financial Liabilitiese
Particulars As on 31st March, As on 31st As on 1st

2022 March,2021 April,2020

Interest accrued on borrowings 4.09 6.49 4.04

Total 4.09 6.49 4.04

25 Other Current Liabilities
Particulars As on 31st March, As on 31st As on 1st

2022 March,2021 April,2020

Advances from customers 3.06 19.43 0.02
Statutory dues payable 56.44 110.46 140.42
Salary and Wages payable 105.09 97.76 139.03
Other payables 167.46 110.32 32.46

Total 33205 337.97 311.93
Notes:

26 Sh rtt Pro 'sons0 erm VI I

Particulars As on 31st March, As on 31s! As on 1st
2022 March,2021 April,2020

(a) Provision for employee benefits
- Provision for gratuity (net) «Refer Note. 37 (B)) - 4.26 7.86
- Provision for Bonus 23.99 16.77 13.62
- Provision for compensated absences «Refer Note. 37 (B)(b)) 2.28 - -

Total 26.27 21.04 21.48

27 Current Tax Liabilities
Particulars As on 31st March, As on 31st As on Is!

2022 March,2021 April,2020

85.65 11.85

Total 85.65 11.85
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16 Share Capital

(i) Authorised Share Capital

Particulars Equity Share Capital

No. of Shares Amount
As at 1st April, 2020 3,000,000 300.00
Increase 1(decrease) during the year 9,000,000 900.00
As at 31March,2021 12,000,000 1,200.00
Increase 1(decrease) during the year - -
As at 31March, 2022 12,000,000 1,200.00

(ii) Issued Share Capital

Particulars
Equity Share Capital

No. of Shares Amount

As at 1st April, 2020 2,793,397 279.34
Increase 1(decrease) during the year(Bonus issue) 8,380,191 838.02
As at 31March, 2021 11,173,588 1.117.36
Increase 1(decrease) during the year - -
As at 31March, 2022 11,173,588 1,117.36

(iii) The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares:
Equity shares with voting rights
The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs.101- each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In
the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts, if any. The distribution willbe in the proportion to the number of equity share held by the shareholders.

(iv) Shares allotted as fully paid-up:
During the year 2020-21,the company has allotted 83,80,191equity shares as fuily paid-up bonus shares in the ratio of 3:1 (i.e.Three Bonus shares for every share held) by
capitalization of Security Premium account and Retained Earnings of Rs. 838.02Lakhs/ -

(v) Shares held by shareholders each holding more than 5% of the shares
As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021

Shareholders No. of shares I Percentage No. of shares I Percentage

Snehal Raviibhai Patel 10970,116 I 98.18% 10970,116 I 98.18%

(vi) hareh IdS a ing a :promoters:
As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021

Promoters No. of Shares % Held % change during % Held % change
the year No. of Shares durinz the vear

Ravjibhai Dudhat 91,736 0.82% 91,736 0.82% -
MillSnehal Patel 20,000 0.18% - 20,000 0.18% -
Sangitaben Dudhat 91,736 0.82% - 91,736 0.82% -
Snehal Patel 10,970,116 98.18% - 10,970,116 98.18% -

17 Other Equity

(i) Securities Premium (Excess of face value of the equity shares)
Opening balance
Less: Utilised for Issue of Bonus Shares (Bvcapitalization of Reserve)

Particulars

As on 31st
March,2022

As on 1st April,
2020

Total

As on 31.t
March,2021

(ii) Retained Earnings
Opening balance
Add: Net Profit for the Year
Opening adjustment due to adoption of Ind AS
Less: Utilised for Issue of Bonus Shares (Bycapitalization of Reserve)
Add/ (Less):Remeasurement of tile Net Defined benefit liability1asset net of tax effect
Less: Dividends paid
Closing balance

- - 150.00
5,752.49 3,814.93 2,834.46
5,75249 3,814.93 2,984.46

- 150.00 150.00
- 150.00
- - 150.00

3,814.93 2,834.46 2,870.77
1,922.95 1,666.71 -

- (36.31)
- (688.02) -

14.61 1.77 -
- -

5,752.49 3,814.93 2,834.46

5,75249 3,814.93 2,984.46

Securities Premium Account
Retained Earnings
Total

Closing Balance

Note 1: Equity instrument held at FVOCI: The company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investment in equity instruments in other
comprehensive income. This amount will be reclassified to retained earnings on de-recognition of equity instrument.
Note 2: During the year 2020-21,the company has allotted 83,80,191equity shares as fully paid-up bonus shares in the ratio of 1:3 (i.e. Three Bonus shares for every share

held) by capitalization of Security Premium account and Retained Earnings of Rs. 838.02Lakhs/ -. As per Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013,Company has utilised the-security premi e bonus share to the extent Secunty Premium was available. Further, Rs. 688.02lakhs has been utilised from retained earnings.
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28 Revenue from operations
Particulars For the year ended For the year

31st March, 2022 ended 31st March,
2021

Sale of Products 14,517.98 13,229.97
Other operating revenues 46.15 64.92

Total 14,564.13 13,294.90

28.1 Sale of Products Comprises of'
Particulars For the year ended For the year

31st March, 2022 ended 31st March,
2021

Manufactured Goods
Intermediates 14,517.98 13,229.97
Total- Sale of Manufactured Goods 14,517.98 13,229.97

Total Sale of Products 14,517.98 13,229.97

28.2 Other operating revenue comprises of :
Particulars For the year ended For the year

31st March, 2022 ended 31st March,
2021

Export Incentives 46.15 64.92
Total 46.15 64.92

29 Other income
Particulars For the year ended For the year

31st March, 2022 ended 31st March,
, 2021

Interest Income (Refer Note 29(i)) 4.82 7.02
Sundry balances no longer payable written back (Net) 1.90 -
Insurance Claim received - 89.66
Net Gain on Foreign Currency Transaction and Translation 47.89 88.40
Gain on Sale of Investment - 59.47
Other miscellaneous Income 25.47 74.72

Total 80.08 319.26

29.1 Interest Income Comprises of
Particulars

Interest on Financial Assets (measured at amortized cost)
Banks deposits
Other de osits

4.25
2.77

3.31
1.51

For the year
ended 31st March,

2021

For the year ended
31st March, 2022

Total 4.82 7.02
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30 Cost of materials consumed
Particulars For the year ended For the year

31st March, 2022 ended 31st March,
2021

Raw Material Consumption
Opening Stock 505.89 356.94
Add: Purchases 8,770.31 9,038.80

9,276.20 9,395.74
Less: Closing stock 385.10 505.89
Cost of Raw Material Consumed 8,891.10 8,889.85

Packing Material consumption
Opening Stock 7.84 16.57
Add: Purchases-P 55.19 62.37

63.03 78.94
Less: Closing stock 5.70 7.84
Cost of Packing Material Consumed 57.33 71.10
Total 8,948.43 8,960.95

31 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade
Particulars For the year ended For the year

31st March, 2022 ended 31st March,
2021

Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished Goods 731.66 56.44
Semi Finished Goods (Work in progress) 479.62 532.46

1,211.28 588.91
Inventories at the end of the year:
Finished Goods 847.37 731.66
Semi Finished Goods (Work in progress) 681.37 479.62

1,528.74 1,211

Net Change in Inventories (317.47) (622.37)

32 Employee benefits expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year

31st March, 2022 ended 31st March,
2021

(a) Salaries, Wages, Bonus etc. 1,330.55 1,172.16
(b) Contributions to Provident and Other Funds 57.05 48.36
(c)Staff Welfare Expenses 59.51 59.71

Total 1,447.11 1,280.23
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33 Finance costs
Particulars For the year ended For the year

31st March, 2022 ended 31st March,
2021

Interest costs:
(i) Interest on borrowings 246.03 166.49
(ii) Unwinding of discount on lease liabilities 1.38 1.99

Total 247.42 168.48

34 Other expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year

31st March, 2022 ended 31st March,
2021

Store and Spares 21.64 15.15
Power and Fuel Expenses 578.87 482.54
Bank Charges 23.60 72.67
Allowance for Doubtful Debts (ECL) 4.04 1.43
Repairs and maintenance
- Plant and Machinery 172.67 144.67
- Building 14.49 12.79
-Others 53.96 61.81

Laboratory and Testing Expenses 51.80 30.53
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 5.81 4.26
Legal and Professional charges 52.05 59.07
Rates and Taxes 5.99 7.22
Rent Expenses (Refer Note. 37 (E) 2.34 2.28
Insurance 46.74 55.39
Loss on sale of Propery, Plant and Equipments (Net) 3.50 -

Donation - 1.00
Factory Expenses 75.01 128.56
Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure (Refer Note no. 39(B)) 33.12 23.19
Payment to Auditors

a. Statutory Audit 3.00 3.00
b. Tax Audit 0.75 0.75
c. Income tax matters 0.25 0.25

Selling and Distribution Expenses
a. Commission Expense 8.17 -
b. Advertisement 0.25 0.05
c. Freight and Forwarding Expenses 168.48 180.63
d. Other Selling and Distribution Expenses 9.09 -

Miscellaneous Expenses 147.59 134.34
Total 1,483.17 1,421.59



SPC Lifesciences Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
All Amounts Are Rs. In Lakhs Unless Otherwise Stated

35 Additional information to the financial statements

(A) Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments

As on 31st As on 31st

Particulars March, 2022 March, 2021

(a) Contingent Liabilities
(i) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts (on account of
outstanding law suits)
(b) No provision has been made for following demands raised by the

authorities since the company has reason to believe that it would get relief

at the appellate stage as the said demand are excessive and erroneous
(i) Disputed Income tax Liability 41.21 36.45

(ii) Disputed VAT &CST 1.14 1.14

Total 42.34 37.58

(c)Guarantees given by Banks to third parties on behalf of the company 25.45 241.71

(d) Commitments
(i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 2,309.20 -
& not provided for Net of Advances

(ii) Other Commitments -

(B) Auditor's Remuneration

Particulars For the Year For the Year
Ended 31st Ended 31st
March, 2022 March, 2021

Statutory Audit Fees 3.00 3.00
Tax Audit Fees 0.75 0.75
Other Services 0.25 0.25
Total 4.00 4.00
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36 TAX EXPENSE

Current tax on profits for the year
Income Tax adjustments for earlier years

Deferred tax
Deferred tax for the year*

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate
Profit before income tax expense
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.168% (2020-21- 25.168%)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible / (taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Expenditure for which deduction is not allowed under Income Tax Act
ROU Asset
Differential tax rate on fair value of investments and sale of investments
EeL provision
Deductible tax expenses (Allowances Under Section 43B)
Depreciation
Tax adjustment of earlier years and others
Income Tax

6.09
0.00

(10.72)
0.00
9.62
(0.00)

10.92
0.00
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37 Disclosures under Indian Accounting Standards

(A) Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity share
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity share holders
of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the Year For the Year
Particulars Ended 31st Ended 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021

Profit attributable to equity share holders of the Company for 1,922.95 1,640.97

basic and diluted earnings per share
Weighted average number of shares as at 31st March for basic
and diluted earnings per shares 11,173,588 11,173,588

Basic/Diluted earnings per share (in Rs.) 17.21 14.69
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(B) Employee benefits

(a) Defined benefit plan:
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more
of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of
service. The scheme is funded. The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense
recognized in the Statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance
sheet for the gratuity plan.

Risks associated with defined benefit plan

Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government securities rate will increase
the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases
the mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.

Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future
salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will

Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate
which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.
If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.Currently, for the plan in India, it
has a relativelybalancedmixof investments in government securities,and other debt instruments.

Asset LiabilityMatchingRisk:The plan faces the ALMrisk as to the matching cash flow. Sincethe plan is
invested in lines ofRule101of IncomeTaxRules,1962,this generally reducesALMrisk.

Mortality risk: Sincethe benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age
only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

ConcentrationRisk:Plan has a concentrationrisk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company
and a default will wipe out all the assets. Although probability of this is very less as insurance companies
have to follow regulatory guidelines.

Characteristics of defined benefit plans
During the year, there were no plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

The following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company's
financialstatements as at 31stMarch,2022.

Due to Change in FinancialAssumption
Due to Experienceadjustments
Due to DemographicAssumptions
Benefitspaid from fund
Benefits

36.46
6.53
2.21

(0.66) 0.69
(20.14) (1.86)

(4.65) (0.56)

--------------------------- ----- -- - - ------------------------
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assets

2.42

(1.28) 1.19
0.02 35.70
(4.65) (0.56)
32.83 36.33

Interest Income
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest
income

by the employer

Present value of unfunded obligation
Present value of funded obligation

value of planned assets at the end of year
Defined Benefit

25.29
(32.83)
(7.55)

40.60
(36.33)
4.26

40.60
36.33
4.26
2.44
2.42
0.03

36.46Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the Period
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period
Net Liability/ (Asset) at the Beginning
Interest cost
nh>To,d Income

Interest Cost for Current Period

36.46
2.21

2.21

(0.66) 0.69

(1.86)

8.74
(2.37)

(2.87)
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25.47
7.65
25.42
25.29

Expected return on plan assets (%)
Rate of Discounting
Salary Growth Rate

Rate

20.00% 20.00%

Withdrawal Rates
younger younger

to 1.00% reducing to 1.00%
a. at older ages p.a. at older ages

Indian Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality

(2012-14) (2012-14)

Note 1: Discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the balance sheet date on Government
bonds, where the currency and terms of the Government bonds are consistent with the currency and
estimated terms for the benefit obligation.

Note 2: The estimate of future salary increase takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Note 3: 100% of the plan assets are invested in group gratuity scheme offered by LIC of India.

1st Following Year
2nd Following Year
3rd Following Year
4th Following Year
5th Following Year
Sum of Years 6 to 10

1.61
2.58
2.22
3.53
2.68

6.56
2.92
3.79
3.37
4.27
16.23

Protected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions
Delta Effect of +0.5 %Change in Rate of Discounting
Delta Effect of -0.5 %Change in Rate of Discounting
Delta Effect of +0.5 %Change in Rate of Salary Increase
Delta Effect of -0.5 %Change in Rate of Salary Increase
Delta Effect of +10 %Change in Withdrawal Rate

of -10 % in Withdrawal Rate

39.23
42.05
41.61
39.63
40.82

25.11 40.34
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The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected
benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as
some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the
present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method
at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit
obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior
years.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the
gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company's financial statements as at balance sheet date:

(b) Other long term Benefit:
The Company's Long Term benefits includes Leave Encashment payable at the time of retirement subject to
, policy of maximum leave accumulation of company. The scheme is not funded.

Changes in the present value of the obligation in respect of leave encashment:

(c) Defined Contribution plans:
Amounts recognized as expense for the period towards contribution to the following funds:

State Insurance Fund
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(C) Segment Information

The segment information is presented under the Notes forming part of the Financial Statements as required under the
Ind AS- 108on "Operating Segment".

The activity of the company relates only one segment i.e.Manufacturing of Pharmaceuticals formulations

Geographical Information:

The company has common PPE for producing goods for domiestic as well as overseas market. There are no PPE situated
outside India. Hence, additional segment wise information for PPE I Additions to PPEhas not furnished.

Information about major customers
Revenue from sales (which exceeds 10% of total revenues) amounting to Rs. 7,7702.30lakhs is derived from a four
customer which is a Public Limited.

(D) Revenue from Contracts with Customers:
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(E) Recognition, measurement and disclosures related to Leases:

(i) As lessee:
(a) Short term leases:
The Company has taken various premises under Short term lease. The Lease agreements have no sub leases. These Lease

are generally cancellable and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms. There are no restrictions

imposed by lease agreements. The lease payment recognised in the statement of profit & loss during the year is ~. 2.34

lakhs (P.Y.~. 2.281akhs).

(b)Finance leases:
The Company's leases comprises of leasehold Builing. The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting

period beginning April 1, 2020 and applied the standard to its leases applying modified retrospective approach. This

has resulted in recognising a right-of-use asset of Rs. 21.171akhs and a corresponding lease liability of Rs. 22.90 lakhs. In

the statement of profit and loss for the current year, the nature of expenses in respect of operating leases has changed

from lease rent amounting to Rs. 9.00 lakhs to depreciation cost for the right to use asset amounting to Rs. 7.06 lakhs and

finance cost amounting to Rs. 1.99 lakhs for interest accrued on lease liability. Due to above change, there is additional

impact of Rs. 0.05 lakhs on statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2021. The total cash outflow for

leases is Rs. 9.00 lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2021.Depreciation cost for the right to use asset amounting to Rs.

7.061akhs and finance cost amounting to Rs. 1.38 lakhs for interest accrued on lease liability. Due to above change, there

is additional reversal impact of Rs. 0.56 lakhs on statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2022. The

total cash outflow for leases is Rs. 9.00 lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2022.

(i) Other Disclosures as Lessee:

Maturity Analysis of lease liabilities:
Maturity Analysis - Contractual undiscounted Cash Flows

As on 31st March, 2022
Less than one year 8.28
One to five years -
More than five years -

Total Undiscounted Lease Liabilities

Lease Liabilities included in the Statement of Financial Position
Non Current -
Current 8.28

Total

The Right -of - use(ROU) asset has been created on account of prepayments made by the company towards lease hold

(ii) As lessor:
Company has not given any asset on lease.
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38 Related Party Disclosures:

(A) (i) Names of related parties and description of relationship:

(B) Key management personnel compensation

© Transactions with Related parties:

Hardik Makwana
Genesis Organics
Private Limited
Snehal Patel Foundation Donation

Patel Foundation Consultancy & Professional fees

Rajivbhai Dudhat
Mill S Patel
MillS Patel

271.48
12.00

25.00 10.95
6.78

3.78
9.00 9.00

1.00

0.51

4.90

Remuneration to KMP
Remuneration to KMP
Remuneration to relative of KMP
Salary to Company Secretary
Rent

(D)

Receivables:
SPCPharmaceuticals Pvt Ltd 0.62 0.62

Payables:
Snehal R Patel 11.65 18.03
Ravjibhai Dudhat 0.80 0.70
Mill S Patel 1.58 1.80
Genesis Organics Private Limited 11
Snehal Patel Foundation 0.59
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39 Other Disclosures:

(A) Disclosures related to the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises.
On the basis of confirmation obtained from the supplier who have registered themselves under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) and based on the information available with the
company, the following are the details:

Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

The principle amount and the interest due thereon remaining
unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year;

i) Principal Amount 400.32 488.65
ii) Interest Due thereon
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of - -
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(27 of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the
surmliar bovnnd thp . dav durino Prwh . •vpar,
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in - -
making payment (which h has been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end .. -
of each accounting year; and
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in - -

the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above
are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

(B) As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by the company. The areas for
CSR activities are promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation and rural
development projects as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.The details of amount required to be
spent and actual expenses spent during the year is as under:

Sr.
No.

Particulars

33.06

13.14
19.98
19.98

19.43

8

For the Year Ended
31st March,2022

For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021

11.06

3
4
5

Gross amount required to be spent by the company during
the year
Amount spent during the year on
(A)Constructionj Acquisition of Assets
-In cash
-Yet to be paid
(B) For purpose other than (1) above:
-In cash
-Yet to be paid
Shortfall at the end of the year
Total of previous years shortfall
Reason for shortfall

12.13
11.06
11.06

1

2

6 Nature of CSRactivities

Rural Development, Rural Development,
healthcare and healthcare and
promoting education promoting education
with the direction to with the direction to
carry out specified carry out specified
activities activities

7 Details of related party transactions
Snehal Patel Foundation 4.90

Movements in the provision of CSR during the year
Balance at the beginning of the year
Provision made during the year

__ .....rovision utilised during the year
ce at the end of the ear

11.06

11.06



SPC Lifesciences Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
All Amounts Are Rs. In Lakhs Unless Otherwise Stated

40 Fair Value Measurements

Financial Assets
Trade Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Bank Balances other than above
Loans and advances to employees and others

FVfPL FVOCI

4,120.71
7.94

FVfPL FVOCI
Amortized

Cost

2.71

3,303.99
594.25

0.12

4,193.45
8.28
4.09

2,503.06
15.90
6.49

(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a)
recognized and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortized cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial
statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the
table.

Financial Assets at FVOCI
Equity Instruments
Financial Assets at amortized cost
Deposits
Financial Assets at FVfPL

7

8

18
22
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Levell: Levell hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments that have
quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the
reporting period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which
maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.
The Company's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

'- the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
- the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted analysis

All of the resulting fair value estimates are included in level 1 or 2 except for unlisted equity securities where the fair values have been
determined based on present values and the discount rates used were adjusted for counter party or own credit risk.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, electricity deposit, employee advances, cash and cash equivalents and other short term
receivables, trade payables, unclaimed dividend, borrowings, capital creditors and other current financial liabilities are considered to be
the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.



SPC Lifesciences Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
All Amounts Are Rs. In Lakhs Unless Otherwise Stated

42 Disclosure as required by Ind AS 101 first time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards
Transition to Ind AS

These are the Company's first Financial Statements prepared in accordance with lnd AS.

The accounting standards notified ul s 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022, the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 31st
March, 2021 and in the preparation of an opening Ind ASbalance sheet at 1st April, 2020 (The Company's date of transition). In preparing its opening Ind
AS balance sheet, the Company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with the accounting
standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or
Indian GAAP).

An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows
is set out in the following tables and notes.

A. Exemptions and exceptions availed
Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied by the Company in the transition from previous
GAAP to Ind AS.

A.l Ind AS optional exemptions
Ind AS 101 permits a first time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) as recognized in the
financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition
after making necessary adjustments for decommissioning liabilities. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible
Assets.
Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its PPE and Intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrying value.

A.2 Ind AS Mandatory Exceptions
A.21 Estimates

An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to Ind AS shall he consistent with estimates made for the same date in
accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates
were in error. Ind AS estimates as at 1st April, 2020 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP. The
Company made estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under previous GAAP:
-Investment in Portfolio Management Services(PMS)carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVPL)

A.22 De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities
-Ind AS 101 requires a first time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date

of transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a first time adopter to apply the de-recognition requirements in Ind AS 109 retrospectively from a

date of the entity's choosing, provided that the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and financial liabilities derecognized as a result

of past transactions was obtained at the time of initially accounting for those transactions.

-The Company has elected to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109prospectively from the date of transition to Ind AS.

A.23 Classification and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of
transition to Ind AS.
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B. Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS
The following tables represent the reconciliations of Balance Sheet, Total Equity, Total Comprehensive Income, and Cash Flows from previous GAAP to
IndAS.
I. Reconciliation of Balance Sheet as previously reported under IGAAP to lnd AS as at 1st April,2020

(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Capital work-in-progress
(c) Intangible Assets
(d) Right of Use Asset
(e) Financial assets

(i) Investments
(ii)Other financial assets

(f) Other non-current assets

(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets

(i)Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Loans
(iv) Other financial assets

(c)Other current assets

2

3,199.98
347.50
43.31
22.90

3,199.98
347.50
43.31

22.90

974.65 974.65

3 2,742.29 (9.32) 2,732.98
48.97 48.97
5.87 5.87
2.21 2.21

146.90 146.90

TOTAL ASSETS

EOUITYAND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a)Equity share capital
(b)Other equity

(1) I~:~~~liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i)Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
Long term Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities (net)

(2) liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade payables

-Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and small enterprises
-Total outstanding dues other than Micro and small enterprises

(iii) Lease liabilities
(iv) Other financial liabilities

(b) Other current liabilities
Short term Provisions
Current tax liabilities (net)

4

1

5

779.23 779.23
15.90
39.02

15.90
39.02

1,753.42 1,753.42

369.15 369.15
1,130.32 1,130.32

1 7.01 7.01
4.04

TOTAL EQUITYAND LIABILITIES

* The previous
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II. Reconciliation of Balance Sheet as previously reported under IGAAP to Ind AS as at 31st M~h, 2021

Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Capital work-in-progress
(c) Intangible Assets
(d) Right of Use Asset
(e) Financial assets

(i) Other financial assets
(f)Other non-current assets

Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets

(i)Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Loans
(iv) Other financial assets

(c)Other current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

II. EOUITYAND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a)Equity share capital
(b )Other equity

Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Iiabiltties

(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(iii) Other financial liabilities

(b) Long term Provisions
(c)Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade payables

-Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and small enterprises
-Total outstanding dues other than Micro and small enterprises

(iii) Lease liabilities
(iv) Other financial liabilities

(b) Other current liabilities
(c)Short term Provisions

TOTAL EQUITYAND LIABILITIES

1,785.99 1,785.99

3 3,314.74 (10.75) 3,303.99
594.25 594.25

0.12 0.12
92.00 92.00

134.43 134.43

1,545.13 1,545.13

488.65 488.65
1,817.88 1,817.88

1 7.62 7.62
6.49 6.49

337.97 337.97
6

4

5

4,147.59 4,147.59
11.00 11.00
34.65 34.65

15.27 15.27

133.93 133.93
29.09 29.09

957.93 957.93
8.288.28

previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.
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III. Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Manufacturing and operating expense
ofmaterials consumed

in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress andStock-in-

Finance costs
Depreciation & Amortization Expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense:
(1)Current tax
(2) Deferred tax
(3) Income Tax adjustments for the earlier years

Profit After tax

Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans

2

2.53

8,960.95
(622.37)

6 1,277.70
1 166.49
1 176.19
3

2,188.60

510.66
5

7

IV. The Company does not have a significant impact on the Cash flow statement as on 31st March 2021

4,941.08 3,300.11

at Fair value through Profit & Loss Account 2 (37.45)

of Recognistion of Right of Use assets & Liability 1 (0.63)

allowance of trade receivables as per expected credit loss model 3 (10.75) (9.32)

of due to change in remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 6 (0.16)

5 2.74 10.46
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C. Notes to First time adoption

1 Leases
Effective 1st April 2020, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 116 - "Leases" using the "Modified Retrospective Approach"
where at the date of initial application, the Lease Liability is measured at the present value of remaining lease payments discounted at the incremental
borrowing rate i.e. 8.70% at the date of initial application and Right-of-use Asset has been recognised at an amount equal to the lease liability.
Accordingly, the Company recognised Lease liabilities of Rs. 22.90 lakhs and corresponding Right-of-use Assets at an amount equal to the lease liability.
Further, there is no impact on the retained earnings as at 1st April 2020 and insignificant impact on the profit and earning per share of the Company for
the year ended 31st March 2021.

2 Fair valuation of investments
Under the previous GAAP, investments in PMS were classified as long-term investments or current investments based on the intended holding period
and realisability. Current investments were carried at lower of cost and fair value. Under Ind AS, these investments are required to be measured at fair
value. The resulting fair value changes of these investments have been recognized in retained earnings as at the date of transition and subsequently in the
profit and loss for the year ended 31st March, 2021.This increases in profit by Rs. 37.451akhs as at 31st March, 2021 (1st April, 2020 (Rs.37.45 lakhs)).

3 Loss allowance
On transition to Ind AS, the company has recognised impairment loss on trade receivables based on the expected credit loss model as required by Ind AS
109.Consequently, trade receivables have been reduced with a corresponding decrease in retained earnings on the date of transition and there has been an
incremental provision for the year ended 31 March 2021 resulting in decreased in carrying amount by Rs.I0.75 lakhs as at 31 March 2021 and by Rs. 9.43
lakhs as at 1st April 2020.

4 Retained Earnings
Retained earnings as at 1st April, 2020has been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS adjustments.

5 Deferred tax
Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and accounting

profits for the period. Ind-AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences

between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of ]i1d-AS12 approach has resulted in

recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under Indian GAAP.

6 Actuarial Gain! Loss
Under the previous GAAP, actuarial gains and losses were recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Under Ind AS, the actuarial gains and losses form

part of remeasurement of the net defined benefit of liability / asset which is recognised in other Comprehensive Income. Consequently, the tax effect of

the same has also been recognised in Other Comprehensive Income under Ind AS instead of Profit and Loss.

7 Other Comprehensive Income
Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognized in a period should be induded in Statement of Profit and Loss for the period, unless a standard
requires or permits otherwise. Items of income and expense that are not recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss but are shown in the Statement of
Profit and Loss as "Other Comprehensive Income", includes remeasurement of Employee Benefit obligation and Income tax relating to these items. The
concept did not exist under the previous GAAP.
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43 Accounting Ratios:
Particulars Numerator Denominator Current Year Previous Year %Variance Reasons for variance (if

+/-25%)
Current Ratio (in times) Current Asset Current Liabilities 1.32 1.40 -5.83%
Debt-Equity Ratio (in times) Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 0.61 0.51 20.28%

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times) Earnings available Debt Service 3.91 4.03 -3.05%
for debt service

Return on Equity Ratio (in %) Net Profits after Average 32.59% 40.67% -19.88%
taxes Shareholder's Equity

Inventory Turnover Ratio (in times) Revenue From Average Value of 7.68 9.63 -20.25%
IOperations Inventorv

Trade Receivables turnover ratio (in Revenue From Average Trade 3.92 4.40 -10.93%
times) Operations Receivable
Trade Payable turnover ratio (in times) Cost of Average Trade 4.60 5.13 -10.36%

sales+Other Payable
exnenes

Net capital turnover ratio (in times) Revenue From Working Capital 9.53 7.89 20.85%
[Operations

Net profit ratio (in %) Net profit After Revenue From 13.20% 12.54% 5.32%
Tax Operations

Return on Capital employed (in %) EBlT Capital Employed 25.27% 31.67% -20.22%
Return on Investment (in %) Income from Average Investment NA NA NA

Investment

44 Other Disclosure Notes:

(i)The company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami property.

(ii) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(iii)The company holds all the title deeds of immovable properties in its name.

(iv) The company does not have any charges or satisfaction thereof during the year, which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(v) The company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year.

(vi) The company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vii) The company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(viii)The company has no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or surveyor any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ix)The company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

(x)Quarterly returns and statement of current assets filed by the company with banks generally are in ageement with the books of account.

(xi)There is no Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 2370f the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii)The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on Number of Layers)
Rules, 2017.

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by the Board of Directors on 15th September, 2022.The financial statements as
45 approved by the Board of Directors are subject to final approval by its Shareholders.

46 The figures of previous year have been re-arranged and regrouped wherever necessary to make them comparable with those of the current year.

The accompanying notes (1 to 46) are an integral part of the financial statements.
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